# Town of Swansboro Board of Commissioners November 27, 2023, Regular Meeting

In attendance: Mayor John Davis, Mayor Pro Tem Frank Tursi, Commissioner Pat Turner, Commissioner Larry Philpott, Commissioner PJ Pugliese, and Commissioner Jeffrey Conaway.

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

# Call to Order/Opening Prayer/Pledge

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm. Mayor Davis led the Pledge of Allegiance.

#### **Public Comment**

Worth Edwards of 123 Forest Lane shared his concerns regarding the lack of sidewalks on Hammocks Beach Road.

Michael Diehl introduced himself to the board as a candidate for appointment to the Swansboro Tourism Development Board. He shared that he is involved in tourism through his business and Airbnb properties.

# Adoption of Agenda and Consent Items

On a motion by Commissioner Turner, seconded by Commissioner Philpott, the agenda was amended to remove Board appointments. The amended agenda and below consent items were unanimously approved.

- May 22, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes
- Tax Refund Requests

Aldret, Kenneth Manning	\$6.88	Tag Surrender
Gorostieta, Alejandro	\$684.97	Over Assessment
Huddleston, Cara Olivia	\$20.21	Tag Surrender
Mier, Melinda J & Olivia Juliet	\$38.95	Military
Seabolt, David Patton	\$150.41	Sold/Traded
Squire, Jason Carl	\$20.90	Over Assessment

## **Business Non-Consent**

State Capital Infrastructure Funds (SCIF) Investment Options

The Town received State Capital Infrastructure Funds (SCIF) to build a new Emergency Operations Center. Per the NC Office of State Budget and Management, the Town can place these funds in a high interest savings account or money market. Finance Director Johnson reviewed that 4 banks provided options that either included Annual Percentage Rates (APR) or Annual Percentage Yield (APY) or both as follows.

Truist – APR of 3.92% or APY of 4%, Wells Fargo – only shared they were less than 4%, First Citizens Bank – APY of 1.75%, and TD Bank – APR of 5.27% with mention that it was expected that rate could decline over time.

Mrs. Johnson shared that these institutions were chosen from the investment pool provided by the North Carolina Treasury and all banks were aware of adhering to the NCGS regulating this investment.

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Tursi, seconded by Commissioner Philpott, approval was given unanimously to proceed with investing the State Capital Infrastructure Funds (SCIF) through TD Bank.

## Monthly Financial Report as of October 31, 2023

Finance Director Johnson reviewed details from the monthly financial report, attached herein with the PowerPoint presentation of the meeting. Presently, expenditures exceeded revenues because ad valorum taxes were still due to be received.

## Future Agenda Topics

Future agenda items were shared for visibility and comment. In addition, an opportunity was provided for the Board to introduce items of interest and subsequent direction for placement on future agendas.

The following items were addressed:

- Board appointments would be held on the December 11, 2023, Organizational Meeting.

# Recognition of Outgoing Board Members

Manager Paula Webb spoke (captured below) of each departing member's time on the board and presented each with a Swan statue commemorating their dates serviced on the board. All members were recognized for their efforts to UDO changes, serving on committees, supporting plans and updates, budget reviews, staff salaries and benefit increases, just to name a few.

## Pat Turner

Served the last 10 years on the Board of Commissioner, but prior to that she served 15 years on the Planning Board for a total of 25 years of service to the Town of Swansboro.

Ms. Turner shared her appreciation for election to the Board and her personal appreciation the Town staff.

#### Frank Tursi

Served on the Board of Commissioners since 2016 and served on several town committees prior. He had been the town's advocate for wetlands restoration & protection, and staffs

biggest cheerleader through the years understanding the challenges that a small staff has to go through to accomplish the day to day duties.

Mr. Tursi shared that serving on the board had been one of his life's greatest achievements. He shared his appreciation to his wife for her support through the years while he served. He further shared that he worked hard to do right by those who elected him. He expressed his appreciation to the Town staff for all their assistance over the years, stating that they were very dedicated and professional. Additionally, he urged the remining board and the new oncoming board to support the town's Manager-Council form of government, follow the open meetings laws and not to take rash actions.

## Harry "PJ" Pugliese

Served since 2020 on the Board of Commissioners, and prior to that several years on the Parks & Rec board. He was recognized for his contributions and his support to staff.

Mr. Pugliese shared his appreciation to his family for their support and to the board and Town staff for their support over the last 4 years and he cherished all the things he has helped to accomplish for the Town.

### **Public Comment**

Citizens were offered an opportunity to address the Board regarding items not listed on the agenda. No comments were given.

## **Board Comments**

Commissioner Conaway shared his appreciation for the departing commissioners and was honored to serve with them. He shared that the town may never have another commissioners as environmentally focused as Mr. Tursi. He recognized Ms. Turner as being of great support during budget review and PJ for inspiring the younger generations.

Commissioner Philpott shared his appreciation to Ms. Turner, Mr. Tursi and Mr. Pugliese and it was a pleasure working with each of them over the years.

Mayor Davis thanked Ms. Turner, Mr. Tursi, and Mr. Pugliese for their service and noted that between the three of them, they collectively held over 35 years of service to the Town of Swansboro.

Mayor Davis spoke regarding the retirement of Town Manager Paula Webb and that he felt the board needed to put someone in the seat of Interim Manager until they could hire one and he recommended Public Works Director Gerald Bates.

In response to an inquiry from the board to see if Mr. Bates had any knowledge of this matter, Mr. Bates shared that this shocked him and he had not been approached about this at any time. He would be willing to fill the role but only if the Town Manager felt he was the best choice.

In response to an inquiry from the Board on who would be best suited, Manager Webb shared that Finance Director Johnson had the most daily interactions with each department and would be her choice to stand in temporarily as interim manager.

Finance Director Sonia Johnson was appointed to serve as interim manager from December 8, 2023 until an interim manager was hired.

## Adjournment

On a motion by Commissioner Philpott, seconded by Commissioner Conaway, the meeting adjourned at 6:23 pm.